
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Town Hall 

1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, January 9, 2019 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION  

• Holiday House Decorating Contest Winners

• Introduction and Swearing-In of New Police Sergeant James Vitale

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 12, 2018 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid December 2018.

3. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, and
Trips for the Fourth Quarter of 2018.

NEW BUSINESS 

4. MEDICAL CAREGIVER PARKING PERMIT

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 6.02 
Relating to Medical Caregiver Parking Permits, and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance.  

5. SURPLUS PROPERTY

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Donation of Surplus Personal Property to
Charitable Nonprofit Organizations, and/or Other Public Agencies, and Authorizing the Sale of
Remaining Property.



Page 2 of 2 
 

STUDY SESSION 

6. RESIDENTIAL SMOKING ORDINANCE 

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 

two business days for your request to be processed. 
 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Council Chamber, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, December 12, 2018 

CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 PM 

Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  

Council Present – Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Members Diana Colvin, Helen Fisicaro and Raquel Gonzalez were all present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Administrative 
Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, City Planner Michael 
Laughlin, Police Chief Kirk Stratton and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. 
The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓

John Irish Goodwin ✓

Diana Colvin ✓

Helen Fisicaro ✓

Raquel Gonzalez ✓

5 0 

PRESENTAIONS 

• Commander Sherwin Lum introduced and swore in new Reserve Police Officer Luis Miguel
Melendrez.

• Commander Sherwin Lum introduced and swore in new Police Officer Joshua Moreno.

• Mayor del Rosario presented a Proclamation in honor of Former Daly City Council Member
Judith Christensen.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 7:18 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward, she closed the public comment period.   

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Council Member Fisicaro requested that #8 be pulled from the Consent Calendar and 
discussed immediately following. 

Item #1



 

Page 2 of 5 

 

1. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Declaring the Results of the General Municipal Election Held on 
November 6, 2018, and Such Other Matters as Provided by Law. 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the November 28, 2018 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 4, 2018 Special Meeting. 

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid November 2018.  

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between the 
Colma Fire Protection District and the Town of Colma, Articulating the Responsibilities of 
the Town of Colma And Colma Fire Protection District in Preparing for and Responding to 
Disasters. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Contract for Janitorial Maintenance Services with 
Bay Contract Maintenance, Inc. 

7. Motion Accepting the Development Impact Fee Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 
and Authorizing a Copy to Be Posted on the Town’s Website. 

8. [Pulled from Consent Calendar] 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 
7; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓  Item #5 Only   

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

8. Council Member Fisicaro requested that language be added to Section 1b of the agreement 
stating that HEART may withdraw funds with preapproval of the Town, shall give notice of 
what the funds are to be used for and shall allow the Town to reject any proposed use of 
the funds.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Housing Endowment and Regional Trust of San 
Mateo County (HEART) for the Town to Lend its Uncommitted Housing Funds to HEART 
with the requested changes to the agreement; the motion was seconded by Council 
Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    



 

Page 3 of 5 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

9. COUNCIL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

City Clerk Caitlin Corley presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 7:24 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed. Below is the list of 2019 Committee 
Assignments that the Council discussed and proposed: 

Committee Name 
2019 

Primary 

2019 

Secondary 

Office of Emergency Services 

(EMERGENCY SERVICES COUNCIL, MEETS QUARTERLY 3RD 

THURSDAYS IN JANUARY, APRIL, JUNE & SEPTEMBER, AT 5:30 PM, 

AT THE HALL OF JUSTICE IN REDWOOD CITY IN JURY ASSEMBLY 

ROOM) 

Colvin del Rosario 

Colma Creek Flood District   

(MEETS QUARTERLY, 2ND TUESDAY @ 3PM IN MARCH, JUNE, 

SEPTEMBER AND DECEMBER AT CITY HALL, SOUTH SAN 

FRANCISCO) 

Fisicaro  

Peninsula Congestion Relief Alliance - “The Alliance” 

Board of Directors member  

(6 X A YEAR, THURSDAY MORNINGS)  

Gonzalez Colvin 

C/CAG    

(2ND THURSDAY OF THE MONTH, 7PM) 
Colvin Goodwin 

League of California Cities   

(ANNUAL CONFERENCE, AND WORKSHOPS THROUGHOUT THE 

YEAR) 

All 
 

 

San Mateo County Council of Cities 

(MONTHLY DINNER AND MEETING) 

del Rosario is 

the voting 

representative 

All Council 

Members 

can attend 

Mayor/Chamber Walks  

(SCHEDULED BETWEEN THE MAYOR, CITY MANAGER & CHAMBER OF 

COMMERCE, APPROXIMATELY  5+ OUTINGS)  

del Rosario 

All other 

Council 

Members 

City Representative at Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce  

(1-2 MEETINGS A YEAR, AS NEEDED) 
del Rosario Goodwin 

Legislative Committee (C/CAG) 

(ONCE PER MONTH, ON 2ND THURSDAYS AT 5PM)   
Colvin  

ABAG Representative  

(GENERAL ASSEMBLY MEETS TWICE PER YEAR APRIL & OCTOBER) 
del Rosario Gonzalez 

Grand Boulevard Task Force  

(MEETS 3RD WEDNESDAY, 10AM-12 NOON, MARCH, JUNE, 

SEPTEMBER, DECEMBER AT EITHER SAM TRANS IN SAN CARLOS OR 

CITY HALL IN SANTA CLARA)   

Goodwin Gonzalez 

Peninsula Clean Energy Board of Directors 

(MEETS 4TH THURSDAY, 6:30PM AT THE COUNTY OFFICE OF 

EDUCATION BUILDING IN REDWOOD CITY) 

Gonzalez del Rosario 



 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Approve Committee Assignments and Grant to 
the Appointee Discretion in Voting on Matters Brought Before the Committee; the motion 
was seconded by Vice Mayor Goodwin.  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

10. COUNCIL OF CITIES AND CITY SELECTION 

City Clerk Caitlin Corley presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 7:28 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Confirm Designation of the Mayor as the Voting 
Member for the Council of Cities, Designate an Alternate Voting Member, and Give the 
Voting Member Discretion on Any and All Matters to be Considered; the motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Goodwin.  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 

1. COST OF SERVICE  

Administrative Services Director Pak Lin and Brad Donohue presented the staff report. 
Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 8:22 p.m. Residents Thom and Liz 
Taylor made comments. The Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:34 p.m. Council 
discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The Regular City Council Meeting on Wednesday, December 26, 2018 will be cancelled.  

The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, January 9, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
in the Council Chamber. 

 



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro  
 Colma Creek Committee Meeting, 12/11/18 
 
City Manager Brian Dossey gave a report on the following topics: 

• Colma will host the annual December Council of Cities Dinner on Friday, December 
14, 2018. 

• Happy holidays and happy new year! 

ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor del Rosario adjourned the meeting at 8:38 p.m. in memory of Ruby Paniagua, long 
time resident and mother of Council Member Raquel Gonzalez.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #2







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, October – December 2018  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Cynthia Morquecho, Recreation Manager 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2019 

SUBJECT: Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review, October - December 
2018 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

MOTION TO ACCEPT INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES, EVENTS, AND TRIPS FOR THE FOURTH QUARTER OF 2018. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the fourth quarter of 2018, a total of 2073 participants attended 68 programs.  This 
represents an increase of 605 participants from the fourth quarter of 2017. Staff attributes the 
increase to added community events. Specifically, Cinema in the Cemetery and Día De Los 
Muertos events as well as an increase in newly added programing. 

Staff estimates that 41 percent of the population had a current Colma I.D. during the fourth 
quarter of 2018, suggesting that residents participated in multiple programs. 

There were a total of 78 rentals, which is an increase of 2 rentals from the fourth quarter of 
2017.  

BACKGROUND 

Participation 

The Recreation Services Department offered programs, activities, events and trips for all age 
groups during the past quarter.  Below is a summary of participation levels by demographic:  

• A total of 161 adults and seniors participated in enrichment programs.  This represents
an increase of 29 participants from the fourth quarter of 2017.  Staff attributes the
increase to more participants in new classes added during the fourth quarter.

Item #3



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, October – December 2018  Page 2 of 2 

 
• A total of 496 adults and seniors participated in trips and events.   This represents an 

increase of 37 participants from the fourth quarter of 2017.  Staff attributes the increase 
to added programs during the fourth quarter such as Wine & Canvas and Cirque Du 
Soleil.  

 

• A total of 429 youth and teens participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents an 
increase of 56 participants from the fourth quarter of 2017.  Staff attributes the increase 
to more participants in the afterschool program and fall day camp, and the addition of 
the Teen L.E.A.P program.  

 
• A total of 183 youths and teens participated in events and trips.  This represents a 

increase in 25 participants from the fourth quarter of 2017.  Staff attributes the increase 
to the increased participation in Teen Fright night and Teen Center hours as well as an 
increase in participation in other youth programs offered.  

 

• A total of 804 youth, adults and seniors participated in Community Programs.  This 
represents an increase of 458 participants from the fourth quarter of 2018. Staff 
attributes the increase to the addition of Cinema at the Cemetery, Dia De Los Muertos 
Festival and Parol Lantern Workshop. 

 

The attachment contains a detailed breakdown of participation by program. 

Rental Activity 

The Colma Community Center was rented for 59 different events: 
• Resident Rentals (30 social events, 2 fundraisers and 1 meeting) 
• Non-Resident Rentals (one funeral reception and 3 social events) 
• Non-Resident Non-profit Groups (11 programs and four meeting) 
• In House Reservations (3 meetings and 8 event/programs) 

The Sterling Park Recreation Center was rented for 19 different events: 
• Sterling Park Resident Rentals (19 social events) 

 
Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements program and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  For example, staff used paper plates, fork, 
knives, cups, etc. made from recycled content. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. 2018 Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review – Participation Detail 



Page 1 of 2 

Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review 
October - December 2018 

Participation Detail 

Adult/Senior Enrichment Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Boot Camp Fitness 6 2 Existing 
Citizenship Workshops 5 3 Existing 

Cooking Classes 25 3 Existing 
Community Action Plan for Emergencies 25 4 NEW 
Cyber Safety Training 9 1 NEW 
Creekside and Coffee 13 NEW 
Creekside Villas Activities 49 5 Existing 

Dragon Boat Paddling for Beginners Cancelled 1 Existing 
First Aid/CPR Cancelled 1 Existing 
Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 

Gentle & Invigorating Yoga 5 1 Existing 

Yoga for Seniors 6 1 Existing 

Zumba 12 1 Existing 
Zumba Toning & Palango 6 1 Existing 

Adult & Senior Trips & Events 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Adult Holiday Event 220 1 Existing 
Arm Chair Travel 12 2 Existing 

Breakfast with Santa 31 1 Existing 

San Francisco de Solano Mission Cancelled 1 NEW 
Cirque Du Soleil- Volta 50 1 NEW 
Friday Films 30 3 Existing 
High Tea at Lovey’s Tea Shoppe 4 1 NEW 
National Steinbeck Center Cancelled 1 NEW 
Museum of Ice Cream 14 1 NEW 
Santa Cruz Follies Cancelled 1 Existing 

Senior Holiday Luncheon (including staff) 45 1 Existing 

Senior Luncheon 40 2 Existing 
The Great Dickens Fair 29 1 Existing 

Wine & Canvas 21 1 Existing 

Youth & Teen Enrichment Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Ballet, Tap & Hip Hop 8 3 Existing 
College Application Workspace Cancelled 1 Existing 

Colma Teen Program 35 6 NEW 
Fall Day Camp Early Morning Care 16 1 Existing 

Fall Day Camp 26 1 Existing 

Fall Day Camp Afternoon Care 16 1 Existing 

Attachment A



Page 2 of 2 

Early Childhood Music Ed.  Cancelled 2 Existing 

Gleeshiner’s Choir Cancelled 1 NEW 
Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 
Guitar Workshop 4 2 Existing 

Keyboard 4 2 Existing 

Kids’ Club Afterschool Program 77 5 Existing 
Kumon Math Tutoring 92 3 Existing 
Kumon Reading Tutoring 71 3 Existing 

Parents’ Night Out 13 3 Existing 
Tae Kwon Do 30 3 Existing 

Traditional Ukulele Cancelled 1 Existing 

Vibo Youth Ensemble 1 1 Existing 

Violin Workshop Cancelled 1 Existing 

Winter Day Camp Early Morning Care 8 1 Existing 
Winter Day Camp 18 1 Existing 

Winter Day Camp Afternoon Care 10 1 Existing 

 
Youth and Teen Events & Trips 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Breakfast with Santa 81 1 Existing 

Halloween Costume Parade 40 1 Existing 

Ice Cream Arts & Crafts  Cancelled 3 Existing  
Pumpkin Carving Party 41 1 Existing 

Teen Activity Group  Cancelled 1 Existing 

Teen Center Hours 10 1 Existing 

Teen Fright Night 11 1 Existing 
  
Community Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Cinema at the Cemetery 200 1 NEW 
Colma Game Night 33 1 Existing 

Dia De Los Muertos Festival 250 1 NEW 
Halloween House Decorating Contest 41 1 Existing 

Holiday Ceramics with Ruth 6 1 NEW 
Holiday Craft Night/Tree Lighting 72 1 Existing 

Holiday House Decorating Contest 76 1 Existing 

Parol Lantern Workshop 27 1 NEW 
Project Read Learning Wheels 34 2 Existing 

Project Read Nutrition Program 34 2 Existing 

Project Read Science Club 31 2 Existing 

 
Note: Programs were cancelled due to insufficient participation. 



Staff Report re Ordinance - Medical Caregiver Parking Permit Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\29635999.1

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2019 

SUBJECT: Medical Caregiver Parking Permit 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and waive further reading the following: 

ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 6.02 RELATING TO 
MEDICAL CAREGIVER PARKING PERMITS  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed ordinance would modify the existing preferential parking provisions in the Colma 
Municipal Code to allow for parking permits to be issued to qualified medical caregivers of a 
resident with the preferential parking zone. There is currently no provision in the Municipal 
Code addressing parking permits for medical caregivers. Under this provision, a resident’s 
qualified medical caregiver would be allowed to obtain a parking permit for (6) six months with 
the resident’s consent, after which time a renewal application would be needed. The application 
would entail a medical caregiver providing required documentation to include a valid California 
vehicle registration for the caregiver’s vehicle and a medical affidavit signed by the resident’s 
physician indicating the general need for the medical caregiver.  

Qualified medical caregivers can make the request on line or in person, but temporary parking 
permits must be picked up at the Colma Police Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. There are no fees for parking permits.  Thus, by allowing medical caregivers to obtain 
temporary parking permits, no revenue will be generated. 

ANALYSIS 

Throughout the past year, staff has heard concerns from the City Council and residents of 
Sterling Park regarding the need for parking permits for medical caregivers. On occasion, a 
resident in the preferential parking zone may need assistance from a physician, nurse, or social 
worker to treat an individual for an illness or disability. Medical caregivers usually consist of 

Item #4



Staff Report re Ordinance - Medical Caregiver Parking Permit Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\29635999.1  

certified nursing assistants or medical assistants who have medical training needed to help with 
things like injections and properly reading vital signs. Other duties may consist of changing 
dressings and bandages, administering medication, and recording health patterns.  

The Colma Police Department shall issue a permit to a medical caregiver after the applicant 
completes the application provided by the police department and provides the necessary 
documentation, to include the vehicle information of the caregiver and a signed affidavit by the 
resident’s physician. A medical caregiver would have to complete an application on line or in 
person and retrieve the parking permit in person at the police department. Any permit issued to 
a medical caregiver would count against the 4-permit maximum allowed per residence in the 
preferential parking zone. 

Other cities such as the City of Mountain View and the City and County of San Francisco require 
a similar completed application to obtain a parking permit for a medical caregiver.  

Council Adopted Values 

Modifying the existing Preferential Parking Code to better address the needs of the Sterling Park 
neighborhood is consistent with the Council’s value of Responsibility because Council is 
considering the negative impacts of parking issues on the community, and with the Council’s 
value of Vision because potential modifications to the code can be an innovative way to 
enhance quality of life for our residents.  

Alternatives 

The alternative would be to not amend the Municipal Code and to require qualified residents to 
make use of the existing temporary parking permits provisions in the Municipal Code.  These 
provisions would allow a resident to request a temporary parking permit, valid for fourteen 
days, up to fifteen times during a calendar year, for their medical caregiver. 
 
CONCLUSION 

Staff is recommending that Council introduce the ordinance.   

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 
 



Ordinance No. ____, CMC Subchapter 6.20 Medical Caregiver Parking Permit Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\31722782.1  

ORDINANCE NO. 774 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 6.02 RELATING TO 
MEDICAL CAREGIVER PARKING PERMITS  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) Parking has been a long-term issue in the Sterling Park neighborhood. 

(b) Past regulatory efforts have focused primarily on commuter parking impacts due 
to the nearby Colma BART station. 

(c) There continues to be a limited number of parking spaces relative to the number 
of residents’ vehicles. 

(d) In 2017, the Town found that limiting the number of preferential parking permits 
for residents and the number of temporary permits, and eliminating separate guest 
permits, was in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
residents of Colma. 

(e) Since limiting the number of permits, certain residents who have a medical 
caregiver have expressed concern about their caregiver’s ability to park when providing 
medical care in their residence. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings 
of the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 6.02.050 AMENDED. 

Colma Municipal Code, Section 6.02.050, shall be and hereby is amended and restated to read 
as follows: 

“6.02.050 Issuance of Permits. 

(a) Applications.  The Police Department shall issue permits, in a form to be determined 
by the Police Department and consistent with the provisions of this article, for 
preferential parking to qualified residents and qualified merchants who have completed 
an application form supplied by the Police Department.  Applicants for such permits shall 

Attachment A



Ordinance No. ____, CMC Subchapter 6.20 Medical Caregiver Parking Permit Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\31722782.1  

present such proof as may be required by the Police Department of a residence or place 
of business adjacent to the area designated as a preferential parking zone. 
 
(b) Preferential Parking Permits. Up to four (4) Preferential Parking Permits shall be 
issued per dwelling unit in a preferential parking zone, for each vehicle registered to a 
Qualified Resident that resides at the permitted dwelling unit. One Preferential Parking 
Permit may be issued to each non-resident employee of a Qualified Merchant upon 
request to the Chief of Police. A Preferential Parking Permit shall remain effective for a 
period of no more than two years, or until the preferential parking zone for which such 
permit was issued is eliminated, or the permits previously issued are re-issued under a 
different time-frame in the sole discretion of the Town, whichever is less.  
 
(1) Medical Caregiver Parking Permits. A Qualified Resident’s medical caregiver 

may also obtain one (1), or up to the maximum if necessary, of the maximum 
four (4) Preferential Parking Permits per Qualified Resident’s dwelling unit in the 
preferential parking zone.  In order for a medical caregiver to obtain a 
Preferential Parking Permit, the medical caregiver must: 

(i) Obtain and provide the Town with the express written consent of a 
Qualified Resident; 
 
(ii) Complete an application form provided by the Colma Police Department; 
 
(iii) Provide evidence that the vehicle is registered in California and either: (1) 
registered to the medical caregiver or (2) authorized to be used by the medical 
caregiver; and 
 
(iv) Provide an affidavit signed under penalty of perjury by the Qualified 
Resident’s physician indicating the Qualified Resident’s general need for the 
medical caregiver. 

 
Upon receipt of all of the required documentation above, the Chief of Police, or his or 
her designee, shall issue a parking permit to a Qualified Resident’s medical caregiver.  
The permit shall be valid for up to six months from the date of issuance, or until such 
lesser time that the Qualified Resident indicates the medical caregiver’s services are no 
longer required. 
 
(c) Temporary Permits. The Police Department may also issue to any qualified resident 
or any qualified merchant a Temporary Permit for use by a bona fide visitor of the 
applicant, as follows: 
 
(1) The request can be made through the Town’s website or in person and must 

include the license plate number of the visitor’s vehicle.  A Temporary Permit 
may be denied based on misuse (e.g. the qualified resident has used the 
Temporary Permit to facilitate repeated access to BART, rather than for bona fide 
visitor of the qualified resident).  Temporary Permits may be issued for up to 
fourteen (14) days. No more than fifteen temporary permits may be issued per 
dwelling per year regardless of the number of qualified residents residing at the 



Ordinance No. ____, CMC Subchapter 6.20 Medical Caregiver Parking Permit Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\31722782.1  

dwelling, and no more than one permit may be in effect at one time.  The 
resident/merchant must retrieve each Temporary Permit in person at the Police 
Department and show a California driver license with a Colma address (or other 
proof of residency deemed appropriate by the Chief of Police) or that he/she is a 
qualified merchant.  

(d) Placement. Resident and Merchant Permits must be displayed from inside the 
rear window on the driver’s side of the vehicle (except for convertibles in which case the 
Permit must be displayed inside the front windshield), with the permit number or vehicle 
license number clearly visible from the outside. Temporary Permits must be suspended 
from the rear view mirror of the automobile, with the permit number or vehicle license 
number clearly visible from the outside. 

(e) Conditions of permit. Each parking permit shall be subject to all conditions and 
restrictions set forth in this section and of the preferential parking zone for which it is 
issued.  

(f) Other Laws and Regulations. The issuance of a parking permit shall not be 
construed to be a permit for, or approval of, any violation of any provision of this Code 
or any other laws or regulations. 

(g) Fees. No fee shall be charged for issuance of a permit except that the city 
council may, by resolution, set a fee for replacement of lost or destroyed permits.  

(h) Appeals. Any person who has been denied a permit may appeal that decision to 
the City Manager by giving written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the decision 
of the Police Department. 

 

ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 

ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. 

 



Ordinance No. ____, CMC Subchapter 6.20 Medical Caregiver Parking Permit Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\31722782.1  

ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ____ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on January 9, 2019 and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on January __, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



Staff Report – Surplus Property  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

VIA: Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2019 

SUBJECT: Surplus Property 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DONATION OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY TO 
CHARITABLE NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS, AND/OR OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF REMAINING PROPERTY. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Colma Municipal Code 1.10 (Attachment B) allows the City Manager to designate any unused 
Town personal property as surplus.  Over the past several years with the construction of the 
Police Station and the remodeling of Town Hall, the Town has accumulated a fair amount of 
unused/surplus property.   

Colma Municipal Code section 1.10.060 and 1.10.070 requires City Council approval prior to 
conveying surplus property to charitable nonprofit organizations and other public agencies.  
Staff recommends that the City Council direct the City Manager to make the Town’s surplus 
property available to local charitable organizations and other public agencies. 

Staff also recommends that any remaining surplus property be sold through an auction, or 
through any other means available within the Colma Municipal Code including by sealed bid or 
open market sale. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be staff costs associated with presenting and preparing surplus property to charitable 
organizations, other public agencies, or in preparing for a sale.  Costs will range between 
$1,000-$1,500.    

BACKGROUND 

Over the past several years the Town has accumulated a fair amount of surplus property that is 
being stored at the Corporation Yard.  See attachments C and D for a detailed list of the items. 

Item #5



Staff Report – Surplus Property   Page 2 of 3 

Per Colma Municipal Code 1.10.010 the City Manager circulated a written list of inventory and 
contacted the Town Department Heads to determine whether there is a need for these items 
within their departments.  The Department Heads have reviewed the list and have stated there 
is not a need for these items in their respective departments.; Therefore, the City Manager has 
declared these items surplus property. 

ANALYSIS 

Over the years a fair amount of Town surplus property has accumulated at the Corporation 
Yard taking up a large amount of space.  Some items have been there for quite some time and 
will soon start to show signs of mold and decay, making the items unusable.   

Staff wishes to donate the surplus property to local charitable organizations and other public 
agencies.  If approved by Council, staff will reach out to nonprofit groups and other public 
agencies informing them of the surplus property and request that they submit a list of the items 
that they are interested in.  Requests will be granted on a first come first served basis.  The 
Town will require that any nonprofit or other charitable organization interested in the surplus 
property sign a document ensuring that the property will be used for the benefit of educational, 
scientific, or charitable purposes or for community matters as outlined in Colma Municipal Code 
1.10.060. 

Any items not donated will then be prepared for auction, or for sale through any other means 
available within the Municipal Code including by sealed bid or open market sale as outlined in 
Colma Municipal Code sections 1.10.020 through 1.10.050.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
The proposed recommendation of donating surplus property to non-profit organizations is the 
responsible action because the Town is recycling office furniture to organizations that may be in 
need and the furniture otherwise could end up in a landfill. 
 
Sustainability Impact 

Donating these items to non-profit organizations or other public agencies or selling them to for-
profit agencies or groups prevents these items from going to the landfill. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution and could instead opt to: 

1.  Sell all the surplus property; or, 

2.  Retain the surplus property. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution directing staff to donate surplus 
property and then sell the remaining items. 



Staff Report – Surplus Property   Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Colma Municipal Code 1.10  
C. Surplus Property Inventory 
D. Photos of Surplus Property 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res 2019-__ Surplus Property Page 1 of 2  

RESOLUTION 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DONATION OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY TO 
CHARITABLE NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS, AND/OR OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES, 

AND AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF REMAINING PROPERTY  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has accumulated excess personal property such as office furniture
and other miscellaneous items as a result of construction of the Town Police Station and 
remodeling of the Town Hall. 

(b) The City Manager has maintained a written inventory of the unused property.  On 
December 27, 2018, the City Manager circulated a list of the inventory and consulted with the 
Town’s department heads on whether the personal property can be used within their respective 
Town departments.   

(c) The Town’s department heads have reviewed the inventory and determined their 
departments do not have a need for the personal property.  The City Manager has declared this 
furniture to be surplus property in accordance with Colma Municipal Code 1.10.010. 

(d)  The City Manager recommends that the Town donate this property to charitable 
nonprofit organizations for educational, scientific, or charitable purposes, or for community 
matters such as recreation, education, aid to the destitute, and city beautification per Colma 
Municipal Code 1.10.060.   

(e) The City Manager also recommends that the Town donate this property to other public 
agencies per Colma Municipal Code 1.10.070 after exhausting the donation of the property to 
charitable nonprofit organizations.  

(f) Finally, the City Manager recommends that the surplus personal property that is not 
donated to nonprofits and other public agencies be sold per Colma Municipal Code Sections 
1.10.020 through 1.10.050. 

2. Order.

(a) The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to convey the surplus personal
property to charitable nonprofit organizations, and/or other public agencies, consistent with 
Colma Municipal Code Sections 1.10.060 and 1.10.070. 

(b) The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to sell the remainder of the surplus 
personal property by auction, or through any other means available within the Colma Municipal 
Code Sections 1.10.020 through 1.10.050, including by sealed bid or open market sale, in the 
sole discretion of the City Manager, in consultation with the City Attorney. 

Attachment A



 

Res 2019-__ Surplus Property   Page 2 of 2   

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on January 9, 2019 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin       

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 



Attachment B







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town of Colma

Surplus Inventory List

December 20, 2018

No. Quanity Item Color Description Photo

1 16 Office Chair Dark blue/black frame Upholstered seat and back 1

2 27 Office Chair Dark blue/black frame Upholstered seat and back with arms 2

3 10 Office Chair Dark blue/black frame Upholstered seat and back with arms & wheels 3

4 4 Office Chair Burgandy/wood frameUpholstered seat and back 4

5 6 Office Chair Purple paisley Upholstered black frame & arms 5

6 3 Office Chair Brown leather Black frame arms and wheels 6

7 1 Office Chair Red Upholstered black frame & arms/wheels 7

8 1 Office Chair Grey Upholstered black frame & arms/wheels 8

9 1 Wood podium Council Chamber 9

10 1 4-shelf armoire Oak Wood 10

11 1 36-inch Cherry wood Work table with drawer 11

12 7 Office furniture desk Cherry wood Kimball; with drawers and return 12

13 1 48-inch office bookcase Cherry wood Kimball; 4-shelf none

14 1 36-inch office filing cabinet Cherry wood Kimball none

15 3 Web-back office task chair Black Arms & wheels 15

16 1 Executive office chair Brown leather Arms & wheels none

17 1 36-inch bookcase Cherry wood 4-shelf 17

18 2 Office Chair Black Upholstered with arms/wheels 18

19 1 Office Chair Blue Upholstered black frame & arms/wheels none

20 1 Bookcase Cherry wood Kimball; 4-shelf 20

21 2 Office Chairs Orange paisley Upholstered; wood frame with arms 21

22 1 Free standing coat closet Cherry wood front metal frame 22

23 1 Free standing supply cabinet Black metal; 5-shelf 23

24 1 48-inch file cabinet Beige Hon; 4-drawer 24

25 1 48-inch work table Cherry wood 25

26 1 5-foot side board table Oak With drawers 26

27 1 7-foot side board table Cherry wood With file drawers and cabinets 27

28 1 Large free standing credenza Cherry wood 28

A
ttachm

ent C



Town of Colma

Surplus Inventory List

December 20, 2018

No. Quanity Item Color Description Photo

29 1 Three level decorative ceramic fountain Burgandy 29

30 6 Chair Wood finish Upholstered wood frame 30

31 1 Table top podium Dark Walnut 31

32 1 Microwave Black Sharp 32

33 1 48x48 encased white board Cherry wood 33

34 1 4ft x 8ft conference table Cherry wood 34

35 2 Leather executive office chair Black leather Wood frame 35

36 1 36-inch display case Cherry wood 36

37 1 5ft kitchen table with leaf Cherry wood 37

38 1 4ft armoire Naughty pine 38

39 1 5ft wide tv/armoire Golden oak none

40 1 36-inch filing cabinet Beige 5-drawer none

41 1 Charboiled used bbq Black Propane 41

42 1 Office Chair Beige pasley Upholstered black frame & arms/wheels 42

43 4 10ft canopies Wood frame 43

44 1 2 basket gas fryer Stainless steel Wolf 44

45 1 HP copier Color laserjet 850N 45

46 1 Paper Folding unit DF 500 pitney bowes 46

47 1 12ft conference table/dais Walnut none

48 10 Misc. compost & recycle bins 48

49 1 Speed limit radar trailer 49

50 1 Sign board radar trailer 50

51 36 Plastic file boxes 51

52 1 Five drawer file cabinet Hon 52



1 

Town of Colma 
2019 Surplus Property Photos 

Item No. 1 – Blue Office Chair Item No. 2 – Black Office Chair 

Item No. 3 – Black Office Task Chair Item No. 4 – Burgundy Office Task Chair 

Attachment D



2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 5 – Purple Paisley  Office Task 
Chair 

Item No. 6 – Brown Leather Office Task 
Chair 

Item No. 7 - Red Office Chair Item No. 8 – Grey Office Task Chair 



3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 9 – Wood Podium Item No. 10 – Armoire 

Item No. 11 – Wood Table 

Item No. 12 – Desk 



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 15 – Black Web Back Office 
Chair 

Item No. 17 – Wood Book Case 

Item No. 18 – Black Office Chair 
Item No. 20 – Cherry Wood Bookcase 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 21 – Orange Paisley Office Chair Item No. 22 – Office Coat Closet 

Item No. 23 – Supply Cabinet Item No. 24 – File Cabinet 



6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 25 – Work Table 

Item No. 26 – Side Board 
Table 

Item No. 27 – Side Board 
Table 



7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 28 – Free 
Standing Credenza 

Item No. 29 – Decorative 
Fountain 



8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 30 – Chair 

Item No. 31 – Table Top 
Podium 

Item No. 32 – Microwave Oven Item No. 33 – Wood Encased 
Whiteboard 

Item No. 34 – Conference 
Table 



9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 35 – Leather Executive 
Office Chair 

Item No. 36 – Display Case 

Item No. 37 – Kitchen Table 

Item No. 38 – Armoire 



10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 41 – BBQ Item No. 42 – Beige Paisley 
Office Chair 

Item No. 43 – Canopies 

Item No. 44 – Wolf – 2 Basket 
Fryer 



11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 45 – HP Copier 
Item No. 46 – Paper Folder 

Item No. 48 – Compost/Recycle Bins 



12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 49 – Speed Limit Radar 
Trailer 

Item No. 50 – Sign Board Radar 
Trailer 



13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item No. 51 – Plastic File Boxes 

Item No. 52 – File Cabinet 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re: Smoking Ordinance Study Session  Page 1 of 5 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Laughlin AICP, City Planner  

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2019 

SUBJECT: Residential Smoking Ordinance Study Session 

__________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions, opinions and direction from the City 
Council. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As a follow-up to the Study Session held by the City Council in March of 2018, surveys were 
sent to residential property owners and tenants asking their opinion about various potential 
residential smoking policies. Based on the survey results, the City Council should consider if an 
ordinance amendment is recommended or if no additional local regulation is recommended at 
this time. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

BACKGROUND 

In March of 2018, the City Council held a study session to consider various types of potential 
local smoking regulations.  In attendance were representatives of the San Mateo County 
Smoking Coalition and Breathe California. The Council directed staff to receive input from the 
community about smoking policies. In addition, the City Council directed staff to prepare a 
smoking ordinance for the creation of 20’ buffer zones from entrances and exits to commercial 
businesses, outdoor eating areas, bus stops, ATM’s and at Special Events.  Since the ordinance 
went into effect in late September, staff has provided outreach and door stickers for Colma 
businesses.  

On July 11, 2018, the City Council received a presentation from Breathe California about 
smoking in multi-family residential buildings.  

Item #6



Staff Report re: Smoking Ordinance Study Session  Page 2 of 5 

 
In October of 2018, the San Mateo County Grand Jury requested information from jurisdictions 
about their existing residential smoking policies. A letter was submitted to the Grand Jury in 
response, and a report back to the Grand Jury will be provided by the end of January 2019.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Multi‐Family Apartments and Multi‐Family Residences  
 
Since this study session focuses on Multi-Family and attached Single-Family/Townhouses, the 
following information is repeated from the March study session. Below is an inventory of multi-
family housing in Colma: 
 

Unit Type Number of 
properties 

Number of 
Units 

Apartment (5+ units)* 2 23 

Fourplex 2 8 

Triplex 7 21 

Duplex or home w/ADU 36 72 

Condominium 1 7 

Townhouses 2 81 

 Total 212 

*One of the properties is a town owned 18-unit senior apartment complex where the lease 
prohibits smoking in units. 
 
In considering provisions for multi-family residential, it is important to distinguish between types 
of structures.  The Town has a number of duplexes, tri-plexes, four-plexes and some 
apartments – with a majority in the Sterling Park neighborhood.  These are typically in one 
building with shared walls. They may or may not have shared systems or utilities. Older multi-
family buildings typically have shared single walls or ceilings and/or unsealed heating ducts that 
can allow for the passage of smoke. Some San Mateo County cities (such as Belmont) have 
adopted residential smoking restrictions that restrict smoking only in buildings where there is a 
shared ceiling/floor and shared single walls. Some San Mateo County ordinances exempt 
duplexes or homes with accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) and define multi-family as 3 or more 
units. If this level of restriction is applied in Colma, it would only apply to approximately 34 
units. Some property owners and management companies prohibit smoking through lease 
restrictions, as will be discussed in the survey results, below.  
 
The Town has one condominium project on lower B Street.  The seven units and ground floor 
offices are in two buildings. These units have separate walls between units and do not share 
common systems – they have their own gas, electric and heating systems and are effectively 
townhomes (with the exception of the ground floor office area in one of the front building).  
 
The Town has two attached single-family or townhouse style residential communities – Hoffman 
and Verano.  In each of these developments, units are freestanding with their own exterior 
walls which abut one another.  They do not share building systems or utilities. Since the 
exterior walls are not shared, some ordinances in San Mateo County exempt these types of 
developments from the interior smoking prohibition (Daly City) while some do not (Foster City).   



Staff Report re: Smoking Ordinance Study Session  Page 3 of 5 

 
Residential Survey Results 
 
Three separate surveys were sent to multi-family property owners, owners of common interest 
developments (condominiums, attached residential and townhouses), and renters.  Three 
surveys were sent to vary the types of questions asked. A full summary of each survey is 
included in attachments A, B and C to this report.  
 
Below is a further summary of the results, with a combination of the surveys for common 
questions: 
 

Lease Restrictions for Rented Units 

 

The purpose of this question on both the rental owner survey and the renter survey 

was to determine the extent of units where smoking is already restricted. A majority 

of the rental units managed or owned by those that responded to the survey 

indicated that their units are covered by a lease restriction that prohibits smoking 

(just over 50%).  Of the renters that responded, a majority indicated that they are 

prohibited from smoking in their unit.  Due to the number of respondents (and 

potential overlap of units in the two surveys), it is not possible to determine the total 

number of rental units with smoking lease restrictions.  

 

Support for a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking in a rental unit  

 

A majority of owners or managers of rental units would support an ordinance that 

prevents smoking in a rental unit.  This response may be due to the fact that many 

of the units have no smoking lease restrictions, or that the landlord can defer to the 

Town for enforcement under an ordinance (or cite the ordinance in a lease).  A 

majority of renters also support this type of ordinance provision.  

 

Support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking within 20 feet of the 

entrance to a unit   

 

A majority of owners or managers of rental units would support an ordinance that 

prevents smoking within 20’ to the entrance of a unit.  A majority of renters would 

also support this type of ordinance provision. A majority of the owners in common 

interest developments also support this type of ordinance provision.  

 

Support for a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking within 20 feet from a 

window, separate balcony, private outdoor patio or deck 

 

A majority of owners or managers of rental units would support an ordinance that 

prevents smoking within 20’ from a window, balcony, patio or deck.  A majority of 

renters would also support this type of ordinance provision. A majority of the owners 



Staff Report re: Smoking Ordinance Study Session  Page 4 of 5 

in common interest developments also support this type of ordinance provision (and 

limiting smoking in a common area that is within 20’ of a window, door or private 

outdoor living area).  

 

Support for smoking restrictions on private balconies or patio areas in a common 

ownership interest community  

 

A majority of the owners in common interest developments support this type of 

ordinance provision, which would prevent smoking on private (exclusive use) patios 

or balconies due to the close proximity to adjoining units and the windows on 

adjoining windows.  

 

Support a smoking restriction that prevents smoking inside a residence in a 

common interest development (where the owner is typically the occupant of the 

unit)  

 

The owners in common interest developments were evenly divided on this type of 

ordinance provision, with those in opposition feeling that it violates property rights.  

 

Support for residential smoking restrictions to be adopted by the Town of Colma 

instead of any restrictions adopted by an HOA policy agreed upon by a majority of 

owners 

 

A majority of common interest property owners indicated that they would prefer 

residential smoking restrictions adopted by the Town of Colma (14 respondents) as 

opposed to HOA policy (7). Seven respondents do not want any smoking restrictions 

to be adopted. 

 
Enforcement 
 
Under most ordinances, enforcement is through complaints filed by individuals impacted by 
smokers that are not adhering to state of local regulations.  The San Mateo County Tobacco 
Education Coalition (TEC) may also receive complaints about ordinance violations in a San 
Mateo County jurisdiction.  If an ordinance is adopted in Colma, the TEC will assist the Town 
with education and mediation services. The TEC has indicated that they are able to resolve 
issues most of the time so that enforcement is not needed. If enforcement is needed, it would 
be carried out by the Police Department and the Code Enforcement Officer (depending on the 
time of day the complaint is received and if the complaint includes a threat of violence or an 
additional extenuating circumstance). Typically, a violation of a smoking ordinance is an 
infraction and a public nuisance, subject to a fine of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for the first 
offense, a fine of two hundred dollars ($200.00) for a second offense committed within one 
year, and a fine of five hundred dollars ($500.00) for a third and each additional offense 
committed within one year.  Enforcement may also occur through administrative citation and 
fine.  



Staff Report re: Smoking Ordinance Study Session  Page 5 of 5 

 
Council Adopted Values 

The study session is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it allows the City 
Council to consider aspects of a residential smoking policy. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council is encouraged to ask questions and provide direction to staff.  Specifically, staff 
would like the City Council to discuss and consider the following questions: 
 

1. Should the Town expand smoking policy to include aspects of multi-family or common 
interest residential?  

2. Should the Town consider indoor smoking restrictions for multi-family apartments, 
where there are shared walls and floors/ceilings? 

3. Should the Town consider restrictions for indoor smoking in Townhomes and 
Condominiums, even if there are no shared walls, floors or building systems? 

4. Should the Town consider buffer zones at residential building entrances? 
5. Should the Town consider restrictions for smoking within proximity to windows, 

balconies, patios or decks? 
6. Should the Town consider restrictions for smoking on multi-family or common interest 

owned balconies, patios or decks? 
 
After the discussion, the Council should direct staff if there are desired next steps.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Multi-family Property Owner Survey 
B. Common Interest Development Survey 
C. Renter Survey 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Smoking and Short-Term Rental Survey June 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

Multi-Family Property Owner Smoking Survey Results 

On May 15, 2018 staff sent a survey to 59 property owners and managers who have rental units 
in Colma. A total of 17 responses were received, representing 48 rented units. Below is a summary 
of the responses by question asked: 

1. Do you currently have a lease restriction in place that prevents smoking in your rental

unit(s)?

Yes: 9 (representing 20 units). No: 7 (representing 22 units).  Remaining did not 

respond or indicated that they do not currently rent out their unit. 

2. Would you support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking in your rental unit(s)?

Yes: 14 (representing 33 units). No: 4 (representing 14 units).  

3. Would you support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking within 20 feet or 30 feet

of the entrance to your unit?

Yes: 10 (representing 28 units). No: 4 (representing 13 units).  

4. Would you support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking within 20 feet or 30 feet

of a window, separate balcony, private outdoor patio or deck?

Yes: 10 (representing 28 units). No: 4 (representing 13 units).  

5. Do you currently have a lease restriction in place that prevents subletting or which

prevents the short- term rental of a unit by a tenant?

Yes: 12 (representing 36 units). No: 4 (representing 6 units).  Remaining did not 

respond. 

6. Do you support the short-term rental of unit(s) for 30 days or less?

Yes: 6 (representing 5 units). No: 11 (representing 37 units).  Remaining did not 

respond. 

Please feel free to provide any additional comments about smoking policies that the Town 

should or should not adopt:  

• In favor of all smoking restrictions in unit and around unit.

• If favor of smoking restrictions since smoking causes property damage

• Trick is trying not to tell owners what they can do with or on their own properties

(smoking).

Attachment A



 

Smoking and Short-Term Rental Survey   June 2018 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

• No cultivation or smoking of Cannabis. 

 
Please feel free to provide any additional comments about short-term rental policies that the 
Town should or should not adopt:  
 

• Don’t support short-term rentals 

• Owners should be allowed to rent for any period they want (long or short term)  

• Owners, not tenants, should be able to rent for long or short term 

• Town should allow short term rental and not intrude on owner rights 

 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 



Smoking and Short-Term Rental Survey October 2018 

Page 1 of 2 

Property Owners in HOA Development Smoking Survey Results 

On August 2018 staff sent a survey to 89 property owners in common interest developments to 
obtain information about types of smoking restrictions they would support, and, if the Town or 
their HOA should implement policies. A total of 28 responses were received. Below is a summary 
of the responses by question asked: 

1. Would you support smoking restrictions on private balconies or patio areas in your

community?

Yes: 16. No: 11. Remaining did not respond. 

2. Would you support a smoking restriction that prevents smoking inside your residence?

Yes: 14. No:14.  

3. Would you support a smoking restriction that prevents smoking within 20 feet from the

entrance to your home?

Yes: 19. No: 8. Remaining did not respond.  

4. Would you support a smoking restriction that prevents smoking in a common area that

is within 20 feet from any window, separate balcony, private outdoor patio or deck?

Yes: 21. No: 5. Remaining did not respond.  

5. If smoking Restrictions are to be adopted, would you prefer that any restrictions be

adopted by an HOA policy agreed upon by a majority of owners, or, by restrictions

adopted by the Town of Colma?

I would prefer smoking restrictions as an HOA policy: 7. 

I would prefer smoking restrictions adopted by the Town of Colma: 14. 

I do not want any smoking restrictions to be adopted: 7. 

6. Do you support the short term rental of unit(s) for 30 days or less?

Yes: 13. No: 15.  

Please feel free to provide any additional comments about smoking policies that the Town 

should or should not adopt:  

• Smoking policies violate a person’s rights.

• HOA's should enforce anti-smoking policies.

• Town should adopt smoking restrictions.

Attachment B



 

Smoking and Short-Term Rental Survey   October 2018 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

• Smoking restrictions violate Owners rights on their property.  

• Owner supports restrictions because of health issues. 

 
Please feel free to provide any additional comments about short-term rental policies that the 
Town should or should not adopt:  
 

• The Town should allow short term rentals because short term rentals can help struggling 

home Owners. 

• Short term rental restrictions violate Owners rights on their property. 

• Owners should be able to rent out their home if they choose to. 

• Short term rentals are not beneficial, Owner prefers long term rental. 

• Owner prefers short term rentals because it provides an option for international 

students.  

 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 



Rental unit smoking survey November 2018 

Page 1 of 1 

Renter Smoking Survey Results 

On October 31, 2018 staff sent a survey to 79 households that rent units in Colma. A total of 13 
responses were received. Below is a summary of the responses by question asked: 

1. Is smoking by you or a guest currently permitted in your unit?

Yes: 5. No: 8.  This means that some or a slight majority of units in Colma have lease 

restrictions that already prevent smoking in the unit.  

2. Would you support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking in your unit?

Yes: 8. No: 5.  

3. Would you support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking within 20 feet to the

entrance to your unit?

Yes: 7. No: 6.  

4. Would you support a smoking ordinance that prevents smoking within 20 feet of a

window, common walkway, separate balcony, private outdoor patio or deck?

5. Yes: 7. No: 6.

Please feel free to provide any additional comments about residential smoking policies that the 

Town should or should not adopt:  

• Recreational cannabis is legal and is permitted to be smoked without a doctor’s

approval.

• Smoking in my home or on my deck is none of your business.  A non-smoking ordinance

cannot force any homeowner not to smoke on their property.

• This is not a police state and my property is none of your business.

• Thank you for doing something fast.  Children have to smell the tobacco.

• A smoke free environment would be beneficial to all.

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	01.09.19 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - 12.12.18 Regular Meeting
	2. Report of Checks Paid - December 2018
	3. Recreation Quarterly Review
	A. October - December 2018 Quarterly Review Attachment (2)

	4. Medical Caregiver Parking Permit
	A. Ordinance

	5. Surplus Property
	A. Resolution - Surplus Property
	B. Colma Municipal Code 1.10
	C. Surplus Inventory List
	D. Photos of Surplus Property

	6. Residential Smoking Ordinance Study Session
	A. Multi-family Property Owner Survey
	B. Common Interest Development Survey
	C. Renter Survey




